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IN THE MATTER OF
J. WALTER THOMPSON COMPANY

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 9104. Complaint, Nov. 4, 1977 — Decision, Aug. 23, 1979

This consent order, among other things, requires a New York City advertising agency
to cease disseminating advertisements which contain unsubstantiated perfor-
mance claims for any “product,” as the term “product” is defined in the order.

Appearances

For the Commission: Robert Barton, Ronald Bogard, L. Hahn, Louise
Kotoshirodo and Mitchell Paul.

For the respondent: Arthur Medow, Chicago, Ill., Donald Green,

Wald, Harkrader & Ross, Washington, D.C., Howard Abrahams, New

York City and Burton Y. Weitzenseld, Arnstein, Gluck, Weitzenseld &
Minow, Chicago, Ill.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the
Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that Sears,
Roebuck and Co., and J. Walter Thompson Company, hereinafter
sometimes referred to as respondents, have violated the provisions of
said Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in
respect thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its
complaint stating its charges in that respect as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Sears, Roebuck and Co. is a corporation,
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of New York, with its executive office and principal place
of business located at Sears Tower, Chicago, Illinois.

PAr. 2. Respondent J. Walter Thompson Co. is a corporation,
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Delaware, with its executive office and principal place
of business located at 420 Lexington Ave., New York, New York.

Par. 8. Respondent Sears, Roebuck and Co., now, and for some time
last past has been, engaged in the distribution, sale, and advertising of
portable and undercounter dishwashers and other consumer products
to the public. : _

PaRr. 4. Respondent Sears, Roebuck and Co. causes the said products,
when sold, to be transported from its places of business in various
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States of the United States to purchasers located in .various other
States of the United States and in the District of Columbia. Respon-
dent maintains, and at all times mentioned herein has maintained, a
substantial course of trade in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is
defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act. ,

Par. 5. Respondent Sears, Roebuck and Co. at all times mentioned
herein has been and now is in substantial competition in commerce
with individuals, firms and corporations engaged in the sale and
distribution of dishwashers and other consumer products.

Par. 6. Respondent J. Walter Thompson Co. is now, and for some
time last past has been, an advertising agency of respondent Sears,
Roebuck and Co., and now and for some time past has prepared and
placed for dissemination, advertising material to promote the sale of
various consumer products including Sears dishwashers.

Par. 7. Respondent J. Walter Thompson Co. at all times mentioned
herein has been, and is now, in substantial competition in or affecting
commerce with other advertising agencies.

PAR. 8. In the course and conduct of their businesses, and for the
purpose of inducing the sale of Sears dishwashers and other consumer
products of respondent Sears, Roebuck and Co., respondents have
disseminated and caused the dissemination of advertising in national
magazines distributed by the mail and across state lines, and in
television broadcasts transmitted by television stations located in
various States of the United States and in the District of Columbia,
having sufficient power to carry such broadcasts across state lines. In
addition, respondent Sears has disseminated across state lines advertis-
ing in newspapers and in catalogs distributed by the mail, and by other
means, and through various other outlets including point of sale.

Par. 9. Typical of advertisements so disseminated or caused to be
disseminated by respondents are the advertisements attached as
Exhibits A (print ad) and B (television ad).

PaAr. 10. Said Exhibits A and B and others, represent, directly or by
implication, that the Sears Lady Kenmore dishwasher will completely
remove, without prior rinsing or scraping, all residue and film from
dishes and from pots and pans used in cooking and baking according to
normal consumer recipes and under other circumstances normally and
expectably encountered by consumers, when such dishes, pots and pans
are placed in the bottom rack of the dishwasher for one complete set of
washing and rinsing cycles.

Par. 11. At the time that respondents made the representations
alleged in Paragraph Ten, they did not possess and rely on a reasonable
basis for such representations. Therefore, the said advertisements are
deceptive or unfair.
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Par. 12. In truth and in fact, contrary to respondents’ representa-
tions in Paragraph Ten, the Sears Lady Kenmore dishwasher will not
completely remove, without prior rinsing or scraping, all residue and
film from all dishes, and from pots and pans used in cooking and
baking according to normal consumer recipes and under other circum-
stances normally and expectably encountered by consumers, when such
dishes, pots and pans are placed in the bottom rack of the dishwasher
for one complete set of washing and rinsing cycles. Therefore, said
advertisements are deceptive or unfair.

Par. 13. Said Exhibit A, and others represent dlrectly or by
implication, that dishes in the top rack of the dishwasher will get as
clean as those on the bottom rack after one complete set of washing
and rinsing cycles, without prior rinsing or scraping.

PAr. 14. In truth and in fact, at the time respondents made the
representations as alleged in Paragraph Thirteen, the respondents had
no reasonable basis for making said representations. Therefore, the
said advertisements are deceptive or unfair.

Par. 15. Said Exhibit A and others, by stating that the “Sani-Wash”
cycle gets dishes, pots and pans hygienically clean by giving them an
extra hot 155° final rinse, represents, directly or by implication, that
this cycle destroys all harmful and other bacteria and microorganisms
on the dishes, pots and pans.

Par. 16. At the time respondents made the representations alleged in
Paragraph Fifteen, they did not possess and rely on a reasonable basis
for such representations. Therefore, the said advertisements are
deceptive or unfair.

Par. 17. In truth and in fact, contrary to respondents’ representa-
tions in Paragraph Fifteen, the “Sani-Wash” cycle does not destroy all
harmful and other bacteria and microorganisms on dishes, pots and
pans. Therefore, the said advertisements are deceptive or unfair.

Par. 18. Said Exhibits A and B and others represent directly or by
implication, that the demonstrations depicted and referred to in
Exhibit A and Exhibit B prove that Sears Lady Kenmore dishwashers
will completely remove, without prior rinsing or scraping, all residue
and film remaining on all dishes, pots and pans after cooking and
baking according to normal consumer recipes and under other circum-
stances normally and expectably encountered by consumers.

Par. 19. In truth and in fact, the said demonstrations do not prove
that the Sears Lady Kenmore will completely remove, without prior
rinsing or scraping, all residue and film from all dishes, and from pots
and pans used in cooking and baking according to normal consumer
recipes and under other circumstances normally and expectably
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encountered by consumers. Therefore, the said advertisements are
deceptive or unfair. '

PaRr. 20. As alleged in Paragraph Ten of this complaint, said Exhibits
A and B and others represent, directly or by implication, that it is
unnecessary to scrape or rinse dishes, pots or pans prior to washing
them in the Sears Lady Kenmore. In contrast, the Sears owners
manual, which is provided to consumers after they purchase a Sears
dishwasher, instructed the user to pre-soak or scour firmly cooked or
baked-on foods.

Par. 21. (a) Such instructions are a material fact in light of the
representation made in advertising as set forth in Paragraph Ten. Said
advertisements fail to reveal a fact material in light of the representa-
tion made, and are therefore deceptive or unfair. (b) Such instructions
are materially inconsistent with the advertising representation set
forth in Paragraph Ten. Therefore, the said advertisements are
deceptive or unfair. '

Par. 22. Said Exhibits A and B and others, represent directly or by
implication, that respondent had a reasonable basis for making, at the
time they were made, the representations as alleged in Paragraphs
Ten, Thirteen and Fifteen whereas in truth and in fact respondent had
no reasonable basis for such representations. Therefore, the said
advertisements are deceptive or unfair.

PAR. 23. The use by respondents of the aforesaid false, misleading,
deceptive or unfair statements, representations, and practices has had,
and now has, the capacity and tendency to mislead members of the
consuming public into the erroneous and mistaken belief that said
statements and representations are true and into the purchase of
substantial quantities of dishwashers sold by respondent Sears by
reason of said erroneous and mistaken belief.

PAR. 24. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondents, as herein
alleged, were and are all to the prejudice and injury of the public and
of respondents’ competitors, and constituted, and now constitute,
unfair or deceptive acts or practices in commerce and unfair methods
of competition, in or affecting commerce, in violation of Section 5 of
the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended.
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DEecisioN AND ORDER

The Commission having heretofore determined to issue its complaint
charging the respondent named in the caption hereto with violation of
the Federal Trade Commission Act, and the respondent having been
served with notice of said determination and with a copy of the
complaint the Commission issued, together with a proposed form of
order; and

The respondent and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by
the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the complaint,
a statement that the signing of said agreement is for settlement
purposes only and does not constitute an admission by respondent that
the law has been violated as alleged in such complaint, and waivers and
other provisions as required by the Commission’s Rules; and

The Commission having considered the agreement and having
provisionally accepted same, and the agreement containing consent
order having thereupon been placed on the public record for a period of
sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with the procedure
prescribed in Section 3.25(c) of its Rules, the Commission hereby makes
the following jurisdictional findings, and enters the following order:

1. Respondent J. Walter Thompson Company is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Delaware, with its office and a principal place of
business located at 420 Lexington Ave., New York, New York.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER
Part I

It is ordered, That respondent J. Walter Thompson Company
(hereafter “J. Walter Thompson” or “JWT”), a corporation, its
suceessors and assigns, either jointly or individually, and its officers,
representatives, and agents and employees, directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, division or other device, in connection with
advertising, offering for sale, distribution or sale of the products as
defined in Part IT, paragraph 3 of this order, in or affecting commerce,
as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do
forthwith cease and desist from:

1. Representing directly or by implication that any product will
clean, without prior rinsing or scraping, all dishes, pots and pans used
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in cooking and baking according to normal consumer recipes and under
circumstances normally and expectably encountered by consumers,
unless JWT has a reasonable basis for such representation.

2. Making any statement or representation directly or by implica-
tion concerning the performance of the product, unless JWT has a
reasonable basis for such statement or representation.

It shall be an affirmative defense to any compliance action alleging a
violation of paragraphs 1 or 2 of Part I of the order for JWT to show
that, prior to disseminating an advertisement containing the statement
or representation challenged in such compliance action, JWT submit-
ted to its client in writing all the performance claims which it
reasonably believed were contained in the advertising prepared by it
and exercised due care to assure itself that the advertiser possessed
and relied upon a reasonable basis for those claims.

3. Advertising any such product by referring to or presenting
evidence, including a test, experiment, demonstration, study, survey or
report, which evidence is represented, directly or by implication, as
showing or proving the performance of the product, when such
evidence does not show or prove such performance.

1t shall be an affirmative defense to any compliance action alleging a
violation of paragraph 3 of Part I of this order for JWT to show that,
prior to disseminating an advertisement containing the reference or
presentation of evidence challenged in such compliance action, JWT
submitted to its client in writing all the performance claims which it
reasonably believed were shown or proven by the reference or
presentation of such evidence in advertising prepared by it and
exercised due care to assure itself that this evidence d1d show or prove
such performance claims.

4. Making any statement or representation, dlrectly or by implica-
tion, in connection with the advertisement of any such product which it
knows or has reason to know is inconsistent in any material respect
with any statement or representation concerning the performance of
the product made, directly or by implication, in post-purchase materi-
al(s) supplied to the purchaser of such product. For purposes of this
order, post-purchase material(s) is defined as any product operating
manuals and other written material typically made available by JWT’s
client to an individual who purchase the model of product identified in
the advertising prepared by JWT; provided that this paragraph shall
only appeal to JWT during the time the advertisement is created and
first placed by JWT.

Provided, however, that nothing in this order shall be deemed to deny
or limit JWT with respect to any right, defense, or other affirmative
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defense to which JWT may otherwise be entitled by law in a
compliance action or any other action; nor shall any inference adverse
to JWT be drawn in any case from its failure to invoke the affirmative
defenses provided in this Part or to rely on the procedures provided
herein.

Part 1I

For purposes of this order, each of the terms listed below, as applied
to an advertising agency, is defined as follows:

1. A “reasonable basis” shall consist of a competent and reliable
scientific test or tests, or other competent and reliable evidence
including competent and reliable opinions of scientific, engineering, or
other experts who are qualified by professional training -and experi-
ence to render competent judgments in such matters.

2. A competent and reliable “scientific test” is one in which one or
more persons, qualified by professional training, education and experi-
ence, formulate and conduct a test and evaluate its results in an
objective manner using testing procedures which are generally accept-
ed in the professions to attain valid and reliable results. The test may
be conducted or approved by (a) a reputable and reliable organization
which conducts such tests as one of its principal functions, (b) by an
agency or department of the government of the United States, or (c)
persons employed or retained by JWT’s client if they are qualified (as
defined above in this paragraph) and can conduct and evaluate the test
in an objective manner.

8. The term “product” shall be defined as follows:

(a) dishwashers; and

(b) for paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 of Part I, and for Part II and Part III,
the major home appliances identified in the Stipulation of Fact
attached hereto, entered on June 7, 1978 (and incorporated herein by
reference), but only in the event and to the extent that the Commission
hereafter enters an order to cease and desist against Sears in this
matter covering each of these products and said order becomes final.

4. The term “performance of the product” shall be defined as
follows:

(a) cleaning performance; and

(b) for paragraphs 2, 8 and 4 of Part I, and for Part II and Part III,
all other performance claims of the major home appliances identified
in the Stipulation of Fact attached hereto, entered on June 7, 1978 (and
incorporated herein by reference), but only in the event and to the
extent that the Commission hereafter enters an order to cease and
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desist against Sears in this matter covering such other performance
claims of these products and said order becomes final.

Part 111

It is further ordered, That:

For the period of three years after JWT last placed the adver-

tisements for dissemination, JWT shall retain all tests results, data,
and other documents on which it relied for advertisements of pro-
ducts covered by this order which were in its possession during either
creation or placement by JWT of the advertisements.
- JWT shall notify the Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to
any proposed change in the corporate respondent such as dissolution,
assignment or sale resulting in the emergence of a successor corpora-
tion, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, or any other change
in the corporation which may affect compliance obligations arising
out of the order. ' »

JWT shall forthwith distribute a copy of this order to each of its
operating divisions, and to each of its officers, agents, represen-
tatives, or employees engaged in the preparation and placement of
advertisements of the products covered by this order.

JWT shall, within sixty (60) days after service upon it of this order,
file with the Commission a written report setting forth in detail the
manner and form of its compliance with this order.

STIPULATION OF FACT

Undersigned complaint counsel and counsel for J. Walter Thompson Company
(“JWT") stipulate as follows:

(1) Between January 1, 1971 and December 31, 1975 J. Walter Thompson prepared
and disseminated advertisements for Sears, Roebuck and Co. (““Sears”’) featuring the
following major home appliances: air conditioning units (room or built-in), disposers,
dishwashers and trash compactors.

(2) JWT was not involved in the preparation or dissemination of any other adver-
tisement featuring any other Sears major home appliance between January 1, 1971
and December 31, 1975.

(3) For purposes of Part II, paragraph 3(b) of the Agreement Containing Consent
Order To Cease And Desist, covering JWT in this proceeding, the major home ap-
pliances are all makes of air conditioning units (room or built-in), disposers,
dishwashers and trash compactors.

The above Stipulation Of Fact is entered solely and exclusively for purposes of this
proceeding and for any Federal Trade Commission order that may issue in this pro-
ceeding.

/s| Robert Barton
Complaint Counsel

s/ Mark Schattner
Counsel for
J. Walter Thompson Company
Dated: June 7, 1978
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IN THE MATTER OF
LONE STAR INDUSTRIES, INC., ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SEC.
5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT AND SEC. 7 OF THE
CLAYTON ACT '

Docket 9122. Complaint, Jan. 25, 1979 — Decision, Aug. 23, 1979

This consent order requires a Greenwich, Conn. manufacturer of portland cement and
masonry cement, and the Keystone Portland Cement Co., an Allentown, Pa.
competitor, among other things, to provide the Commission with evidence that
their acquisition agreement has been terminated, and all non-public documents
exchanged during negotiations returned. Respondents are also required to
provide the Commission with 60 days’ advance notice and liberal discovery
rights, should merger plans be resumed before Dec. 31, 1981.

Appearances

For the Commission: Bert L. Slonim and Nicholas P. Kostopulos, Jr.

For the respondents: Melvin C. Garbow and D. Bonderman, Arnold
& Porter, Washington, D.C. for Lone Star Industries, Inc. and Ralph
W. Brenner and T. Michael Mather, Montgomery, McCracken, Walker
& Rhodes, Philadelphia, Pa. for Keystone Portland Cement Co.

CoMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that the
above-named respondents, each subject to the jurisdiction of the
Commission, have entered into a merger agreement, which, if consum-
mated, would violate Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. 45; that said agreement constitutes a violation of
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C.
45; and that a proceeding in respect thereof would be in the public
interest, hereby issues its complaint, pursuant to Section 11 of the
Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 21, and Section 5(b) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45(b), stating its charges as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

1. For the purpose of this complaint the following definitions shall
apply:
a. The term “portland cement” means Types I through V of

portland cement as specified by the American Society for Testing
Materials.
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b. The term “masonry cement” means masonry cement as defined
by the American Society for Testing Materials.

¢. The term “three-state regional market” refers to Eastern
Pennsylvania, New Jersey and Delaware.

d. The term “Eastern Pennsylvania” refers to that part of
Pennsylvania identified by the Bureau of Mines as Eastern Pennsylva-
nia.

II. LoNE STAR INDUSTRIES, INC.

2. Lone Star Industries, Inc. (“Lone Star”) is a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with
its principal office at One Greenwich Plaza, Greenwich, Connecticut.

3. Lone Star manufactures and sells a variety of construction-
related products, including cement, concrete, home improvement
fixtures and lumber.

4. In 1977, Lone Star, the nation’s largest cement producer,
operated (domestically) nine cement production plants in eight states,
including a plant in Nazareth, Pennsylvania.

5. In the fiscal year ending December 31, 1977, Lone Star had total
assets of $667,538,000 and total net sales of $864,905,000, which
generated a net income of $29,710,000.

III. KeystoNE PorTLAND CeMENT Co.

6. Keystone Portland Cement Company (“Keystone”) is a corpora-
tion organized and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania with its principal office at 2200 Hamilton St., Allentown,
Pennsylvania.

7. Keystone is a one-plant company with a 660,000-ton cement
production facility located at Bath, Pennsylvania, which is four miles
away from Lone Star’s Nazareth plant. Keystone manufactures and
sells cement and also sells construction aggregates and coal.

8. In the fiscal year ending December 31, 1977, Keystone had total
assets of $16,817,444 and total net sales of $16,673,677, which generated
a net income of $176,992.

IV. JurispicTiON

9. At all times relevant herein, Lone Star and Keystone have been
engaged in the production and sale of portland cement and masonry
cement in or affecting interstate commerce and said companies are
engaged in or are affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in
Section 1 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12, and each is a
corporation whose business is in or affects commerce, as “commerce” is
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defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C.
44,

V. THE MERGER AGREEMENT

10. On or about October 20, 1978, Lone Star and Keystone entered
into a merger agreement whereby Keystone’s assets would be sold to
Lone Star for $7.5 million plus an assumption of Keystone’s disclosed
liabilities. The merger is scheduled for consummation on January 30,
1979.

VI. TRADE AND COMMERCE

11. - The relevant lines of commerce are the manufacture and sale of
portland cement and the manufacture and sale of masonry cement.

12. The relevant sections of the country are the areas of present
competition between Lone Star and Keystone, including but not
limited to the three-state regional market. '

13. The manufacture and sale of portland cement is concentrated,
with the combined market shares of the four largest firms estimated to
be approximately 50.5%. _

14. The manufacture and sale of masonry cement is concentrated,
with the combined market shares of the four largest firms estimated to
be approximately 68.8%.

VII. AcruaL COMPETITION

15. Lone Star and Keystone are presently and have been for many
years actual competitors in the manufacture and sale of portland
cement and masonry cement within certain geographic markets and
submarkets thereof, including but not limited to the three-state
regional market.

VIII. ErFects: VIOLATIONS CHARGED

16. The effects of the agreement, if consummated, may be
substantially to lessen competition or tend to create a monopoly in
violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C.
45, in the following ways, among others:

a. actual competition between Lone Star and Keystone in the
manufacture and sale of portland cement and masonry ecement will be
eliminated;

b. actual competition between competitors generally in the manu-
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facture and sale of portland cement and masonry cement may be
lessened;

c. Keystone will be eliminated as an actual substantial independent
competitor in the manufacture and sale of portland cement and
masonry cement,;

d. concentration in the manufacture and sale of portland cement
and masonry cement will be increased, and the possibilities for
eventual deconcentration may be diminished; and :

e. mergers or acquisitions between other portland cement and
masonry cement producers may be fostered, thus causing a further
substantial lessening of competition in the manufacture and sale of
portland cement and masonry cement.

DEecisioN AND ORDER

The Commission having heretofore issued its complaint charging the
respondents named in the caption hereof with violation of Section 7 of
the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and of Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45, and the
respondent having been served with a copy of that complamt together
with a notice of contemplated relief; and

The respondents, their attorneys, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order,
.an admission by the respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth
in the complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such complaint,
and waivers and other provisions as requlred by the Commission’s
Rules; and

The Secretary of the Commission having thereafter withdrawn this

matter from adjudication in accordance with Section 3.25(c) of its
Rules; and '
. The Commission having considered the matter and having thereupon
accepted the executed consent agreement and placed such agreement
on the public record for a period of sixty (60) days, now in further
conformity with the procedure prescribed in Section 3.25(f) of its
Rules, the Commission hereby makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent Lone Star Industries, Inc. is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Delaware, with its office and principal place of business
located at One Greenwich Plaza, in the City of Greenwich, State of
Connecticut.

2. Respondent Keystone Portland Cement Co., is a corporation
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organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, with its office and principal
place of business located at 2200 Hamilton St., in the City of
Allentown, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

3. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondents, and the proceeding is
in the public interest. :

ORDER

I

It is ordered, That Lone Star Industries, Inc. (“Lone Star”) and
Keystone Portland Cement Company (“Keystone”) shall forthwith
provide evidence that the acquisition agreement between them has
been and is terminated and further, that any and all non-public
documents provided by either Lone Star or Keystone to the other in
connection with the acquisition agreement be returned. This paragraph
shall not relieve any party from any obligation of confidentiality
imposed by agreement between them or by operation of law.

11

It is further ordered, That until December 31, 1981 neither Lone Star
nor Keystone shall acquire, directly or indirectly, all or any part of the
assets (except in the ordinary course of business), or securities of the
other until sixty (60) days following the receipt by the Director of the
Bureau of Competition of the Federal Trade Commission of written
notice of the proposed acquisition, which notice shall specifically refer
to this order. If during the first thirty (80) days of the aforesaid sixty
(60) day period, the Commission staff has issued any discovery request
(including requests for the production of documents or witnesses) to
either Lone Star or Keystone to which a complete response has not
been made on or before the fiftieth (50th) day of the aforesaid sixty
(60) day period, then the proposed acquisition shall not be consummat-
ed until ten (10) days after a complete response to such discovery
request has been made. Neither the aforesaid sixty (60) day period nor
the discovery provisions of this paragraph are in derogation of any of
the rights conferred upon the Commission by statute or rule, and shall
not be construed as supplanting any of these rights.

II1

It is further ordered, That Lone Star and Keystone each shall notify
the Conmimission at least (30) days prior to any proposed corporate
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change such as dissolution, assignment, or sale resulting in the
emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of
subsidiaries or any other change, which may affect compliance
obligations arising out of this order. '

Iv

It is further ordered, That Lone Star and Keystone each shall, within
sixty (60) days after service upon it of this order file with the
Commission a written report setting forth in detail the manner and
form in which it has complied with this order.

Commissioners Clanton and Pitofsky did not participate.
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IN THE MATTER OF

ITT CONTINENTAL BAKING COMPANY, INC.

- CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SEC.
5 AND SEC. 12 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-2989. Complaint Aug. 24, 1979 — Decision, Aug. 24, 1979

This order, among other things, requires a Rye, N.Y. manufacturer and seller of
bakery products to cease disseminating advertisements which contain unsub-
stantiated comparative claims regarding the dietary fiber content of “Fresh
Horizons” bread and other such food products; or which fail to include a
statement disclosing that fiber ingredient in Fresh Horizons is derived from tree
pulp. Such statement is required for two and one-half years in all advertise-
ments for food products containing wood fiber. The order also prohibits the
company from representing that an ingredient in Fresh Horizons or in other
food products has been recommended or approved by a doctor or scientist unless

* that party has been fully informed of the ingredient’s identity and derivation.
Additionally, respondent is required to review and conform to the terms of the
order all advertising claims for bakery and/or cereal-based products prepared or
financed by its corporate parent.

Appearances

For the Commission: Maryanne S. Kane, Robert L. Patterson and
Sandra N. Hommer.

For the respondent: Gordon Thomas, Rye, N.Y.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act and
by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal Trade
Commission, having reason to believe that ITT Continental Baking
Company, Inc. (“ITT Continental”), a corporation, hereinafter referred
to as respondent, has violated the provisions of said Act, and it
appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof
would be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint stating its
charges in that respect as follows:

ParacrarH 1. ITT Continental is a corporation organized, existing
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Delaware, with its office and principal place of business located on
Halstead Ave., Rye, New York.

Par. 2. Respondent ITT Continental, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
International Telephone and Telegraph Corporation, is now and has
been engaged in the manufacturing, advertising, offering for sale, sale
and distribution of a bakery product designated by the trade name,
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~ “Fresh Horizons.” This product as advertised, is a “food” within the
meaning of Section 12 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C.
52. .

Par. 3. In the course and conduct of its business, respondent ITT
Continental causes its food product, Fresh Horizons when sold, to be
transported from respondent’s places of business located in various
States of the United States to purchasers thereof located in various
other States of the United States and the District of Columbia.
Respondent ITT Continental maintains, and at all times mentioned
herein has maintained, a substantial course of trade in its bakery
products, including Fresh Horizons. The volume of business for Fresh
Horizons alone, in or affecting such commerce, has been and is
substantial. ’

Par. 4. In the course and conduct of its business, respondent has
disseminated or caused the dissemination of various advertisements for
Fresh Horizons by the United States mail and by various means in
commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission
Act, including advertisements inserted in magazines and newspapers
and also advertisements broadcast. by television and radio stations
located in various States of the United States and in the District of
Columbia that have sufficient power to carry such broadcasts across
state lines into other States of the United States. The purpose of all of
these advertisements has been to induce, directly or indirectly, the
purchase of Fresh Horizons and it is likely that these advertisements
have succeeded in inducing consumers to purchase this product.

Par. 5. Typical of the statements and representations in said
advertisements are those found in Exhibits A-F attached to this
complaint. :

Par. 6. Through the use of said advertisements referred to in
Paragraphs Four and Five, and other advertisements not specifically
set forth herein, and because of the nature of the Fresh Horizons
product, respondent has represented and now represents, directly or by
implication, that

-~

a. Fresh Horizons is a product made only with ingredients common-
ly used in the manufacture of bread or that it does not contain any
major ingredient not commonly used, or anticipated by consumers to
be commonly used, in bread; '

b. The fiber in Fresh Horizons is the same kind of fiber as that in
whole wheat bread or 100% all-bran cereal.

Par. 7. Through the use of said advertisements referred to in
Paragraphs Four and Five, and other advertisements not specifically
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set forth herein, respondent ITT Continental has represented and now
represents directly or by implication, that

a. Fresh Horizons, in a one slice serving, contains five times the
amount of fiber contained in one slice of 100% whole wheat bread; and

b. Fresh Horizons, in a one slice serving, contains as much fiber as
one serving of 100% all-bran cereal.

PARr. 8. In truth and in fact:

a. Fresh Horizons is not made only with ingredients commonly
used in the manufacture of bread, but rather contains as one of its
major ingredients fiber derived from wood, an ingredient not common-
ly used, nor anticipated by consumers to be commonly used, in bread;

b. Fresh Horizons, in a one slice serving, does not contain five times
the amount of fiber contained in one slice of 100% whole wheat bread;
and

¢. Fresh Horizons, in a one slice serving, does not contain as much
fiber as one serving of 100% all-bran cereal.

Respondent’s statements and representations as set forth in Para-
graphs Six and Seven are false, deceptive, and misleading. These
representations, rendered and now renders the advertisements re-
ferred to in Paragraphs Four and Five false, deceptive, misleading and
unfair. These advertisements constituted and now constitute false
advertisements. ; v

Par. 9. Furthermore, respondent marketed and advertised Fresh
Horizons without disclosing to the purchasing public through its
advertising that the product is made with fiber derived from wood or
that its extra fiber is fiber derived from wood.

PAr. 10. Respondent’s failure to identify the fiber found in Fresh
Horizons is misleading in a material respect, in that disclosure of this
fact to consumers would be likely to affect their decisions of whether
or not to purchase said product. Since consumers would not expect to
find fiber derived from wood as an ingredient in a bread or bakery
product, respondent’s failure to disclose this material fact rendered
and now renders, the advertisements referred to in Paragraphs Four
and Five false, deceptive, misleading and unfair.

Par. 11. Furthermore, through the use of said advertisements
referred to in Paragraphs Four and Five and other advertisements not
specifically set forth herein, respondent ITT Continental has repre-
sented directly or by implication, that three out of five doctors
recommend Fresh Horizons for its fiber alone.

PaR. 12. At the time of the first dissemination of the representation
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contained in Paragraph Eleven, respondent ITT Continental did not
possess and rely upon a reasonable basis for making this representa-
tion. Therefore, the making and dissemination of this representation,
as alleged, without a reasonable basis therefor, constituted and now
constitutes unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting
commerce. : _

Par. 13. In the course and conduct of its aforesaid business, and at all
times mentioned herein, respondent ITT Continental has been, and
now is, in substantial competition in commerce, with various corpora-
tions, firms, and individuals engaged in the sale of food products of the
same general kind and nature as those advertised and/or sold by
respondent.

Par. 14. The use by respondent of the aforesaid unfair or deceptive
representations and the dissemination of the aforesaid false advertise-
ments has had, and now has, the capacity and tendency to mislead
- members of the consuming public into .the erroneous and mistaken
belief that said representations were and are true and into the
purchase of substantial quantities of said food product by reason of
said erroneous and mistaken belief.

Par. 15. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondent, as herein
alleged including the dissemination of the aforesaid false advertise-
ments, were and are all to the prejudice and injury of the public and of
respondent’s competitors and constituted, and now constitute, unfair
methods of competition in or affecting commerce, and unfair or
deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce, in violation of
Sections 5 and 12 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

Commissioner Clanton did not participate.
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- Dawvid Shaub, Nurth Truro, Mass,
. Twe slices of Fresh Horizons® have as much
“crude fiber or roughage as two howls of 100%,
* bran c;:real, As much crude fiber as 6
cups of raw celery. Now your -
family can get the fiber you D *a
. want them to have in a food vy » A
*they'll want 1o eat— delicioys R TN
: Fresh Horizons. Wheat and Whire. S
‘Frcsh Karizans., v

Weeldiherand tale cutcalorias.
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GULF GUMED "
P 20 auncel ean cor
1 : cican conder.cd ok
1% soup c=ns wecier /
'3 cups cooned chicker:. cubed .
2 cups raw petate. shidaded ;

) fli-ounce; pockage trozen mixed veg
1 lc:ge oniun. chopped

1 mediuwe creen pepper cut in linch
% teospoon dried savory Jecves. crutt
2 teasj.oon pepper

In c lerge scucepan, combine i
boil: reduce heat. Cover and s
vies, slunng often. Serves §,

SOUTHERN POTPOURR?

1 (10%-ounce) can corfdensed chicken broth

1 {lO?;-ounce;:ar.t‘ondensed'luxkey‘vgelc!-!c-5:::;
2 soup cans watter

1% cups cocked ham. diced

1 cup quick-cocking rice, uncooked

1 (I0-ounce] pcckage frozen peas

1 {2-ounce) cam sliced mushrooms. drained

% teaspoon rubbed.sage

In f large saucepar. combine ingredients. Brirg 16 @
ball; reduce heat. Simmer for about 5§ minutes, siring
oléccsionully. Serves 5.

SEAFARER'S SUPPER
2 (10% ce) cans
clem chowder

:2 soup cans water .
% pound fillet of white fish, cut in 2-inch pieces '
3 ‘(B-cunce) can ‘vhole kernel gelden ghm, - -t -
. updrgined = e g -
% cup fine noodles

- % cup green pepper strips

"% teaspoon kot pepper souc

In a saucepan. combine j
reduce heat. Simmer for
casionally. Serves S.

grecients. Bring to a boil;
bout 10 minutes, stirring oc-

HEARTY VEGETABLE SOUP
1 J0%-ounce) can éondensed bee! broth
-1 (10%-ounce) can condensed vegelable soup
2 soup cans wdter

2 cups cabbage. cut in long thin shreds

1 cup cookel bee!. cubed

1 {B-ounce) can fomatoes. cut up

% cup small shell macaroni. uncooked

1 medium onion. sliced

2 tablesp P hee

. grated

P

1 medium clove garlic. minced
]

% teaspoon caraway seeds

A .
In @ )a1ge savcepan. combine ingredients. Bring to a
boil;reduce heat. Simmer for about 30 minutes, stir-

: pﬂ'g/ occasionally. Serves S.

30 FAMILY EERLTH .

Tane! £
grrareaizrizsiney

:
Nereed vk
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e
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Y
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Judy Stewart, LaMesa, California

Two slices of Fresh Horizons® have
fewer calories than a cup of unflavored,
low-far yogurt. Fewer than a cup of 3
plain gelatin, or a half-cup . A
of erecamed cottage cheese, 1, ;

With Fresh Horizons you don't =
have 1o give upbread. Allyou ™~._.. -
give up is calories. Whear and White. -
Freshiticrizane, .

Vieadd ficerand fale osieaicrias,

TN G Sarg e

-
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“30% fewer calories than
white bread? | just changed
my bread.”

Sandia Baynard, S) Petersburg, Fla

Why are so many

changin

Fresh tic

30% fewer calories

than white bread.

infact, 2 lull shces of Fiesh Horizons ®
have lewer calones than a cup ol gelatin
or a cup of plain yogurt Fewer than a hall
cup of creamed cotlage cheese. Now you
don’t have lo give up bread. With Fresh
Horizons, all you give up is calories.

Five limes the crude fiber
ot whole wheal bread.

_ Yougel as much crude fiber or rough-
age in 2 slices of Fresh Horizons as you
getin 2 bowls ol brancereal. Now your
family can get the fiber many authorities
agree they need in 2 food they il ike to
eal—delicious Fresh Horizons bread!

101972, Conunental Baking Co.

& Fresh Monions 13 a regisiesed b ademark of ITY Comnertal Bakng Co.

Complaint
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“Five times the fiber of
whole wheat bread? | just
changed my bread.”
Beverly Sees. Indepardence, Mo

women lilee these

tee L H VA 2R
g their family’s creea o

.
rizons?

A taste the whole family likes.

The many women who bought Fresh
Hotizons for the calories and the fiber
found their families liked Fresh Honzons
for the taste. Tha! goes for both wheat and
white. Wiin Fresh Horizons you gel all the
fiber. 2% the tasle you want. All you give up
is the calories!

Advertised in Reoder's Digest - July, 1977
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Imtrodt “Cimﬁs
(he bread with 30% fewer calories than nﬂlj".5 |
and 400% more fiber than whole wheat.

-———-,I

iriesingh AQE"’E OIS
A new kind of bread 3 out of 5 doctors
recommend for ns fiber alone.

B

No x'l?.f'
bread mc_xw
all these claims:



NER

-Hsnf lh.m w hne ! Equ.\lly as
remarkable, Fresh Horizons

¢ fiber than any other bread. almost any other foad.

astes delicious.

rared to whole wheat bread. Fresh Horizons has -~

“-¢s.the fiber — 40W% more. One slice even

he fiber in a serving of 100% All-Bran Cereal. Yet

lorizons pives you 30% fewer calories than

A white bread. Incredible? Yes! In a naiionwide

»f doctors. 3 out of § said they would recommend

Jd ofbrcad for its fiber .xlonc

:ccommcnd fo: its ﬁbcr nlonc

No other

Jy’

o Ic.ndunL universities. i well as at i renowned

medical clinic. Fresh Horizons is the vesult of a
Ion" search for a high-fiber food with reduced calories
that looks and tastes good. And it's here now!

Now's the time to try it. With the
store coupon below, you can siave on
your first loaf of white or wheat.

Fresh Horizons. The bread with "ORE
0% fewer calories. 400% more Aber.
A new kind of bread 3 out of 5 doctors (o3

@.,

PR Ce g - ~

m:m!:::s:: _.Jmm STORECOUPON mmmm:ucm.

avelise)

FRESH HORIZONS

Fresh Honizons has been tested attwo

—WHITE OR WHEAT

.
M. Grocer: You ate authnnznd as our Atent 10 se0cem thiy CouXn.
e )3 00 e purChiate ©f ney Fresh Honrons Bread We will pay yru
1% piuy & handing ¢ harge (0f €ACH of these Coupons rédormed o
M ((a20r e wiln the Irrnt of Itng oliee To ©™laN Payment send 1y

400% MORE FIBER.

DroLCYs ©1 OINCTS WHO Are NOT 18131t Gr5ivibUIOTS Of (it MerChand e
1Mty S ally Avthorred by s Casomer must pay any saics
13> Inviares PAOwIng GurChase Of sartlicsent S16CK 10 COves Liagons
PIREAING 100 1 ILoN sl T Shown 6 1003t {omon vod

brf*?:i males
ah these claims!

Frewn Norzons PO Box 1333, Chnion, lows 52733 Coupons witl nol WORIe Lanedd toshiv led O prcfubied by faw. Cash value - 1,200
Le 1need andt will BE A o AEESINIOR HWOUEN OUIMAC RO Eagners Apnt XD 1972,

A NEW KIND OF BREAD 3 OUT OF 5 DOCTORS RECOMMEND FOR ITS FIBER ALONE
57 ) EEO T AR G 90T BTN XU T D BTN TN R [079 LRy BT

aummmmm

Ad No. 206-16-001A REV. 1 B/13/76
This ad prepared by

GREY ADVERTISING, INC.
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DEcisioN AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of
certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof, and the respondent having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the Bureau proposed to present to
the Commission for its consideration and which, if issued. by the
Commission, would charge respondent with violations of the Federal
Trade Commission Aect; and o

The respondent and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by
the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid
draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of each agreement is
for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such complaint,
and waivers and other provisions as required by the Commission’s
Rules; and '

The Commission having considered the matter and having deter-
mined that it had reason to believe that the respondent has violated the
said Act, and that complaint should issue stating its charges in that
respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed consent agree-
ment and placed such agreement on the public record for a period of
sixty (60) days, and having duly constdered the comments filed
thereafter by interested persons pursuant to Section 2.34 of its Rules,
now in further conformity with the procedure prescribed in Section
2.34 of its Rules, the Commission hereby issues its complaint, makes the
following jurisdictional findings, and enters the following order:

1. Respondent ITT Continental Baking Company, Inc. is a corpora-
tion organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the State of Delaware, with its office and principal place of
business located on Halstead Ave., Rye, New York.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
~ matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding is
in the public interest.

ORDER

I

It is ordered, That respondent ITT Continental Baking Company,
Inc., a corporation, its successors and assigns, and its officers, agents,
representatives and employees, directly or through any corporation,
subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection with the advertising,
offering for sale, sale or distribution of a bakery product called Fresh
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Horizons or any other food product, do forthwith cease and desist from
disseminating or causing the dissemination of any advertisement by
means of the United States mail or by any means in or affecting
commerce which, directly or indirectly:

A. Makes any comparative claim regardmg the amount of fiber in
any such product, as compared with that in any other food product,
unless the claim is based on measurement of “dietary fiber” by the
neutral detergent fiber method with an amylase modification. The
neutral detergent fiber method with an amylase modification shall be
used until such time as the Food and Drug Administration officially
adopts a method for measuring dietary fiber in foods. At that time, the
officially approved method for measuring dietary fiber shall be used
for comparative quantity claims.

B. Makes any representation regarding the fiber content of any
such product, unless respondent possesses and relies upon a reasonable
basis consisting of competent and reliable scientific evidence for each
such representation.

II

It is further ordered, That respondent ITT Continental Baking
Company, Inc., a corporation, its successors and assigns, and its
officers, agents, representatives and employees, directly or through
any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection
with the advertising, offering for sale, sale or distribution of a bakery
product called Fresh Horizons or any other food product, do forthwith
cease and desist from disseminating or causing the dissemination of
any advertisement by means of the United States mail or by any
means in or affecting commerce which, directly or mdlrectly, makes
any representation that any such product or any ingredient in such
product has been recommended or approved by any doctor(s) or
scientist(s), unless: :

A. Before giving such recommendation or approval for such
product, the doctor(s) or scientist(s) had been fully informed of the
identity and derivation of all of the ingredients in such product except
those incidental ingredients which are added to assist in the food
processing function which amount to less than 2% each of the final
product on a welght basis, or

B. Before giving such recommendation or approval for any such
ingredient, the doctor(s) or scientist(s) had been fully informed of the
identity and derivation of that ingredient. :
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I

It 1s further ordered, That respondent, its successors and assigns, and
its officers, agents, representatives and employees, directly or through
any corporation, subsidiary, division or other device, in connection with
the advertising, offering for sale, sale or distribution of the bakery
product called Fresh Horizons or any other bread product containing
alpha cellulose derived from wood, do forthwith cease and desist from
disseminating or causing the dissemination of any advertisement, by
means of the United States mail or by any means in or affecting
commerce, which fails to disclose clearly and conspicuously in each
advertisement in the exact language listed below for two and one-half
years from the effective date of this order:

~ The source of (this/the) fiber is wood; or
Contains fiber derived from pulp of trees.

Upon the expiration of this two and one-half year period respondent
shall disclose clearly and conspicuously in each such advertisement for
such bakery product in no more than ten (10) words that the source of
the fiber in such product is wood or that such product contains fiber
derived from the pulp of trees. _ .

Either of these disclosures shall be required so long as wood
continues to be a fiber component of such product.

Coupons without any advertising claims and point of purchase
advertising without general text are exempt from the requirements of
this provision. Advertisements which make advertising claims and also
contain a coupon are subject to the requirements of this order.

IV

It is further ordered, That respondent, its successors and assigns, and
its officers, agents, representatives and employees, directly or through
any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection with
the advertising, offering for sale, sale or distribution of any bakery
product or cereal-based product do forthwith cease and desist from
disseminating or causing the dissemination of any advertisement, by
means of the United States mail or by any means in or affecting
commerce, which represents directly or by implication that such
product contains only ingredients commonly used, or anticipated* by

¢ An ingredient shall be idered “ ly used or anticipated” for purposes of this order:
(1) if it is enumerated under 21 C.F.R. 170.3(n) or, :
(2) it it is included under 21 C.F.R. 170.3(0) and meets the requirements of the definition of common usage,
- Provided that for substances containing an ingredient which is included under 21 C.F.R. 170.3(0) to be considered
“commonly used or anticipated,” such sub must be used in amounts which do not exceed levels of common
usage when performing the same function in other foods.

(Continued)
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consumers to be commonly used, in the making of such a product,
unless. :

A. suchis the case;

B. the total of the unanticipated and uncommonly used ingredients
in the final product is 4 percent or less by weight;** or

C. the presence, identity, and source of each unanticipated or
uncommonly used ingredient is disclosed clearly and conspicuously
when the total of the unant1c1pated and uncommonly used ingredients
in the final. product is greater than 4 percent of that product by
weight,**

A%

1t is further ordered, That respondent, its successors and assigns, and
its officers, agents, representatives and employees, directly or through
~any corporation, subsidiary, division or other device review and
conform all advertising claims for any bakery and/or cereal-based
product prepared and/or financed by the International Telephone and
Telegraph Oorporatlon its subsidiaries or divisions, to the provisions of
this order.

VI

It is further ordered, That respondent forthwith distribute a copy of
this order to each of its operating divisions.

Vil

It is further ordered, That the respondent shall notify the Commis-
sion at least thirty (80) days prior to any proposed change in its
corporate status such as dissolution, emergence of a successor corpora-
tion, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, and assignment or sale
of the business, or any other change in the corporate respondent that
may affect compliance obligations arising out of this order.

VI

It is fwrthe'r ordered, That the respondent shall within sixty (60) days
after service of this order, submit to the Commission a report, in ‘

For purposes of this order, common usage shall mean a history of amption of a suk by a significant
number of consumers in the United States.
** For purposes of lating the 4% threshold _
(a) when a subsection (o) substance is used to perform a function for which there is no common usage of that
b for that function in foods, the entire amount of the substance shall be camulated;
(b) when a subsection (o) substance is used to perform a function for which there is common usage of that
bst. for that function in foods, the t which ds the highest previous level which has been commonly

used to perform that function shall be lated
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writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in which it has
complied with this order. The effective date of Parts I-V1 shall be the
sixtieth day after serviee of this order.

IX

It is further ordered, That the respondent maintain all files and
records related to the requirements of Parts I-V of this order for a
‘period of three (3) years after the dissemination of any advertisement
of any product covered by this order, and that such material shall be
made available to the Federal Trade Commission or its staff for
inspection and copying upon reasonable demand.

Commissioner Clanton did not participate.
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IN THE MATTER OF

BANKERS LIFE AND CASUALTY COMPANY, ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER; ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 9075. Complaint, Feb. 26, 1976 — Decision, Aug. 27, 1979

This consent order, among other things, requires Bankers Life and Casualty Company
(Bankers Life), an individual, and eleven corporate associates, all engaged in the
advertising, promotion and sale of undeveloped land, to cease misrepresenting
that undeveloped land purchase is a safe investment; involves little financial
risk; and is a means of achieving financial security. The order requires that all
advertising, promotional materials and sales contracts include specified disclo-
sures regarding risks involved in undeveloped land investment; the advisability
of consulting with a real estate specialist prior to contracting; the availability
and cost of utilities; and the identity of lots in flood plain areas. Respondents
must provide purchasers with cooling-off periods and information regarding
their right to cancellation and refund. The firms are also prohibited from
mortgaging any subdivision in the future, without ensuring that paid-up
purchasers of lots in that subdivision will receive their warranty deeds, and be
permitted to retain their rights. Additionally, the order requires respondents to
make prescribed restitution to eligible purchasers who defaulted on their
payments; and provide all active and paid-in-full purchasers, who had contracted
for land at particular subdivisions during a certain time period, with an
opportunity to cancel their contracts and receive specified refunds. The order
holds Bankers Life responsible for assuring that proper restitution is made.

Appearances

For the Commission: Gerald H. Jaggers, William K. Hickey, John T.
Hankins and Jay W. Madden.

For the respondents: William T. Kirby and James T. Griffin,
Hubachek, Kelley, Rauch & Kirby, Chicago, Ill. for Bankers Life and
Casualty Company, Robert D. Inman, Inman & Flynn, Denver, Colo.
for San Luis Valley Ranches, Inc., Larwill Costilla Ranches, Inc., Rio
Grande Ranches of Colorado, Inc., Top of the World, Inc., Materic, Inc., -
G-R-P Corporation, and Richard Greenberg, Alan H. Bucholiz, Quiat,
Bucholtz, Bull & Laff, Denver, Colo. for Colorado Properties, Inc. and
Mileo Associates, Inc., J. Wallace Adair and John F. Bruce, Howrey &
Simon, Washington, D.C. for Southern Realty & Utilities Corporation,
Hartsel Ranch Corporation and Estates of the World, Inc. and Jeffrey
P. Berg, Berg & Spire, Beverly Hills, Calif. for Alice Holguin.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as
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amended, and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the
Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that the parties as
set forth in the caption hereof, hereinafter sometimes referred to as
respondents, have violated provisions of said Act, and it appearing to
the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in
the public interest, hereby issues its complaint stating its charges in
that respect in the enumerated paragraphs below.

Allegations in the enumerated paragraphs of respondents’ present
acts and practices include respondents’ past acts and practices.
Allegations in said paragraphs of respondents’ representations include
such representations in advertising, promotional materials or sales
communications made orally, visually or in writing, directly or by
implication.

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Bankers Life and Casualty Company is a
corporation organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue
of the laws of the State of Illinois, with its principal place of business
located at 4444 West Lawrence Ave., Chicago, Illinois. It also conducts
business at 1001 Park Ave., Lake Park, Florida. Respondent Bankers
Life and Casualty Company dominates and controls the acts and
practices of respondents Southern Realty & Utilities Corp., Hartsel
Ranch Corporation and Estates of the World, Inc. '

Respondent Southern Realty & Utilities Corp. is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Delaware, with its principal place of business located at
1001 Park Ave., Lake Park, Florida. Respondent Bankers Life and
Casualty Company has a majority ownership interest in respondent
Southern Realty & Utilities Corp.

Respondent Hartsel Ranch Corporation is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Florida, with its principal place of business located at 1001
Park Ave., Lake Park, Florida. It is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
respondent Southern Realty & Utilities Corp

Respondent Estates of the World, Inc. is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Hawaii, with its principal place of business located at 4810
North Kenneth Ave., Chicago, Illinois. Respondent Bankers Life and-
Casualty Company has a majority ownershlp interest in respondent
Estates of the World, Inc.

Respondent John D. MacArthur is an individual and an officer,
former officer or Chairman of the Board of Directors of corporate
respondents Bankers Life and Casualty Company, Southern Realty &
Utilities Corp., and Hartsel Ranch Corporation. He owns all of the
outstanding stock of Bankers Life and Casualty Company. He
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dominates and controls the acts and practices of the said corporate
respondents and their subsidiaries. His address is 101 Ocean Ave., Palm
Beach Shores, Florida. : ‘

Respondent Larwill Costilla Ranches, Inc. is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Colorado, with its principal place of business located at 2601
Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, Florida.

Respondent Rio Grande Ranches of Colorado, Inc. is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Colorado, with its principal place of business located at
2601 Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, Florida. It is a wholly—owned
subsidiary of respondent Larwill Costilla Ranches, Inc.

Respondent Trustees of Colorado Properties, Inc. is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Florida, with its principal place of business located at
2601 Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, Florida.

Respondent Top of the World, Inc. is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Colorado, with its principal place of business located at 2601
Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, Florida. It is a wholly—owned subsidiary of
respondent Trustees of Colorado Properties, Inc.

Respondent Milco Associates, Inc. is a corporation organized, exist-
ing and doing business under and by virtue of the the laws of the State
of Florida, with its principal place of business located at 2601 Biscayne
Boulevard, Miami, Florida. It is the sales agent or broker for
respondents Hartsel Ranch Corporation and Estates of the World, Ine.

Respondent Irving E. Miller is an individual and an officer of Milco
Associates, Inc. He owns all of the stock in respondents Milco
Associates, Inc., Trustees of Colorado Properties, Inc., and Larwill
Costilla Ranches, Inc. He formulates, directs and controls the acts and -
practices of the said corporate respondents and their subsidiaries. His
address is 2601 Biscayne Boulevard, Miami, Florida.

Respondent San Luis Valley Ranches, Inc. is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Colorado, with its principal place of business located at 201
Carson Ave. Alamosa, Colorado. It is the sales agent or broker for
respondent Larwill Costilla Ranches, Inc.

Respondent G-R-P Corporation is a corporation organized, existing
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Colorado, with its principal place of business located in Blanca,
Colorado. It is the sales agent or broker for respondents Rio Grande
Ranches of Colorado, Inc. and Top of the World, Inc.

Respondent Materic, Inc. is a corporation organized, existing and






